
    

     
   

       

      

 

    

                
               

                 
 

       

                

         

                  

                   

                   

      

  

   

       

     

   



    

 

        

                  

   

      

     

     

 

      

 

     

 

   



 

            

  

            

 

           

    

     

           

 

 

  

  

           

    

   



    

   

          

 

 

     

  

 

 

    

     

    

  

   

 

    

        

  

   



         

  

  

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

      

 

  

   

  

  

 

            

  

   



            

               

                 

              

                   

              

                 

     

      

  

      

     

    

        

       

               

         

 

   



     

          

         

 

 

  

 

  

 

    

  

      

 

   

  

 

 

   

 

      

  

 

   

   

      

 
  

  

 

  

  

      

    
 

   
      

    

 

   



     

    

    

   

      

     

 

 

 

 

   

   

   

  

 

      

               

 

 

         

   

  

  

  

   



            

                

                

         

  

 

            

                   

                

                 

               

                     

         

  

 

     

   



       

 

   

  

      

    

 

    
            

             
       

               

   

          

      

 

    

             

  



               

            
               

             
             
   

               

        

 

      

           
         
         

               

      

    

            
                 
               

             

     
    
     
         
           

                
   

               

       

    

              
          

      

  



     

    

 

    

 

    

  

    

          

        

             

  

          

    

       

    

            
                 
         

                 
              

             
          

            
                

     

               

        

           

  





           

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

 

  

   

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

            

 

  



     

  

  

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 
 

 
 

 

  

   

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  



            

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

  



 

 

         

         

             

  

           

       
 

 

        
 

 

        
 

   

        

        

  

     

    

            

              
                  

                 
                

    

  



     

    

       
        

           
           

         
         

          
   

       
 

      

           

            

        

          

          

 

     

        

  

      

     

      

      

    

    

    

     

  

    

  



  

   

      

     

    

      

    

     

   

     

     

   

    

     

     

      

    

     

    

    

     

    

  

     

    

    

   

    

    

   

    

      

    

      

    

     

     

   

     

  

    

     

   

   

   

     

    

     

     

    

        

   

    

     

      

     

  

     

    

     

     

    

      

     

    

    

     

 

  



   

     

     

     

     

    

      

   

   

     

    

   

      

    

   

    

   

      

   

      

     

     

    

    

     

     

    

    

    

      

   

    

    

   

     

     

    

       

     

      

     

    

    

    

     

   

 

    

 

 

     

      

   

    

  

  



  

     

        

      

      

     

     

      

     

      

 

    

     

      

   

     

   

    

    

     

    

    

     

   

    

    

     

      

    

       

    

    

    

    

     

     

     

      

     

     

      

    

     

    

    

    

       

     

     

    

      

     

   

     

      

  

  



   

   

    

   

    

  

  

   

     

    

  

     

     

    

   

      

  

      

     

      

    

   

    

      

     

     

      

     

      

     

      

     

      

      

     

    

    

    

       

     

     

     

     

    

     

    

      

     

     

    

    

     

     

  



   

     

     

    

     

     

     

     

   

    

     

     

      

    

      

    

    

     

      

   

      

     

     

   

     

    

     

 

    

       

    

       

    

   

    

    

       

    

        
     

  

 



      

              

           

              

             

                   

               

               

     

                 

                

            

                

                 

            

              

      

     

       

          

  



    

             

             

             

             

                 

                 

    

               

            

               

       

  

 

  

               

      

    

 

           

               
             

              
 

               
               

    

  

  



      
 

          

                   

            

              

               

                

        

                   

       

          

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

          

  



          

       

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

        

  



       

  

         

       

       

 

        

         

  

         

         

 

       

    

        

        

         

            

  

         

   

  

        

  

   

  



        

         

  

   

  

    

    

 

           

            
          

    

    

     

    

                
                  

                

                  
       

             
               

              
                

     

               

      

           

  



        

    

 

           

                 
            

          
                

           
         
       
    
            

     
     
       
      

         
  

     

  



             

       

                

              

       

        

       

       

  

      

       

      

     

  

   

      

       

    

      

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

    

    

 

      

                 
     

  



       
       

                 
              

 
       

           
               

                
   

  









































































 

 
 

   

 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Independent Auditor’s Reports and Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 



 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 
  

 
   

  
 

 
 

   
 
 
 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Contents 

Independent Auditor’s Report ............................................................................................. 1 

Financial Statements 
Statements of Financial Positions....................................................................................................... 3 

Statements of Activities ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Statements of Functional Expenses .................................................................................................... 5 

Statements of Cash Flows .................................................................................................................. 7 

Notes to Financial Statements ............................................................................................................ 8 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards – 
Independent Auditor’s Report........................................................................................ 18 

Schedule of Findings and Responses .............................................................................. 20 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings..................................................................... 22 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
  

 

  

 

  
 

 
 

  

 
  

 

 
    

 
  

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
New York, New York 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Broome Street Academy Charter High School, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
   
  

 
  

 

 

  
 

  
   

  
 

 
 

 

 

 
  

 

  
  

 

 
 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Broome Street Academy Charter High School, as of June 30, 2021, and the changes 
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Prior Year Audited by Other Auditors 

The 2020 financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose unmodified opinion on those 
statements thereon, dated October 30, 2020, included an emphasis paragraph that described changes in 
accounting principles for contributions and revenue from contracts with customers. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying supplementary information within the 2021 statement of functional expenses is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the 2021 financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated November 1, 
2021, on our consideration of Broome Street Academy Charter High School’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Broome Street Academy Charter High 
School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Broome Street 
Academy Charter High School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, New York 
November 1, 2021 



 

 

 
 

 
 

          
                
                      
                      
                          

                

                          
                          

         
                                   
                          

                   

                
                          
                          

                

 
 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Statements of Financial Position 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $     1,133,718 $ 821,882 
Investments 1,638,697 1,638,697 
Grants, contracts and other receivables 161,331 213,819 
Due from affiliate (The Door) 654,418 108,773 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 62,593 45,015 

Total current assets 3,650,757 2,828,186 

Restricted cash 75,492 75,476 
Property and equipment, net 73,843 70,228 

Total assets $     3,800,092 $     2,973,890 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $         839,129 $ 772,546 
Refundable advances 201,351 -
Other liabilities 63,385 55,161 

Total liabilities 1,103,865 827,707 

Net Assets 
Without donor restrictions 

Undesignated for general use 2,546,892 2,000,479 
Reserve - contingency 75,492 75,476 
Net investment in property and equipment 73,843 70,228 

Total net assets 2,696,227 2,146,183 

Total liabilities and net assets $     3,800,092 $     2,973,890 

See Notes to Financial Statements 3 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 

Operating Activities 
Change in net assets $        550,044 $ 527,579 
Items not requiring (providing) operating cash flows 

Depreciation and amortization 39,452 28,052 
Donated stock (16,664) -
Realized gains on investments (693) -
Bad debt expense 18,885 -

Changes in 
Grants, contracts, and other receivables 33,603 (44,966) 
Due from affiliate (The Door) (545,645) (108,773) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (17,578) 10,144 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 66,583 72,528 
Refundable advances 201,351 (94,656) 
Due to affiliate (The Door) - (18,975) 
Other liabilities 8,224 14,454 

Net cash provided by operating activities 337,562 385,387 

Investing Activities 
Purchase of property and equipment (43,067) (84,061) 
Sales of investments 17,357 -
Purchases of investments - (16,735) 

Net cash used in investing activities (25,710) (100,796) 

Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 311,852 284,591 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 897,358 612,767 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash, End of Year $     1,209,210 $ 897,358 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash Consist of: 
Cash and cash equivalents $     1,133,718 $ 821,882 
Restricted cash 75,492 75,476 

$     1,209,210 $ 897,358 

See Notes to Financial Statements 7 



 
 

 
 

  

  

 

 

 
  

 

  

 
  

  
 

  
 

 

 

 

 
      

 
  

 
 

  
 

 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 1: Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School (the School) is a New York State educational 
corporation operating as a charter school in Manhattan, New York.  On October 19, 2010, the 
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York granted the School a provisional 
charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration.  In April 2016, the School’s 
charter was renewed for five additional years.  The School’s charter states that it will provide 
instruction to students in the ninth through twelfth grades for a period of five years. 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School prepares its students for post-secondary success that 
leads to positive life outcomes.  The School values student strengths and provides multiple 
pathways to success through a curriculum of rigorous academic, career and social instruction 
grounded in the principles of the necessary skills and support to graduate, while preparing them for 
a successful future beyond high school.  The School’s admissions policy gives preference to 
students who are homeless, in foster care, or from low performing middle schools. 

The School opened in the fall of 2011 with a freshman class.  Since then, the School grew by one 
grade level at a time until it hit capacity (ninth through twelfth grade) in the 2015-2016 school 
year.  The School’s model merges academic, social, and emotional services to prepare students to 
graduate with a New York State Regents diploma, providing opportunities for a successful future.  
Additionally, the School is partnered with, and housed within, The Door – A Center of 
Alternatives, Inc.  (The Door), a nonprofit organization organized pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Internal Revenue Code (the Code).  Founded in 1972, The Door is a leading youth development 
agency that offers a full range of supportive programming in the areas of health, mental health, 
career and workforce development, legal services, supportive housing, and arts and recreation.  
Through the support found at the School and The Door, New York City’s most at-risk students will 
realize their greatest potential.  All programs were provided remotely during the year ended 
June 30, 2021. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, gains, losses and other changes in net assets during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The School considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents.  Uninvested cash and cash equivalents included in investment accounts are 
considered to be cash and cash equivalents.  At June 30, 2021 and 2020, cash equivalents consisted 
primarily of money market accounts. 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

At June 30, 2021, the School’s cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by approximately 
$813,000. 

Cash Held in Escrow 

Accounts restricted externally by regulators are considered to be restricted cash. 

As part of the School’s charter agreement, the School established a long-term reserve account to 
pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a dissolution should it occur. 

Investments and Net Investment Return 

Investments are carried at fair value.  Investment return includes dividend, interest, and realized 
and unrealized gains and losses on investments carried at fair value, net of external investment fees. 
Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using 
the specific identification method. 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School’s investments have been classified as current based 
on the availability of these investments to fund current operations as needed. 

Investment return is reflected in the statements of activities with or without donor restriction based 
upon the existence and nature of any donation or legally imposed restriction. 

Grants and Contracts Revenue and Receivables 

Revenues from government grants and contracts to which the School is entitled are recognized 
mostly on student enrollment.  Some grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which 
are not based on student enrollment and are recorded when related expenditures are incurred by the 
School.  Receivables are recorded when the revenue is earned.  No allowance for doubtful accounts 
was deemed necessary as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government grants and contracts as refundable advances and deferred 
revenue until related services are performed, at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment acquisitions over $5,000 are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation 
and amortization.  Depreciation and amortization are charged to expense on the straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful life of each asset.  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the 
shorter of the lease term or respective estimated useful lives. 

The estimated useful lives for each major depreciable classification of property and equipment are 
as follows: 

Leasehold improvements 3-5 years 
Computer equipment and software 3-5 years 
Furniture and equipment 3-5 years 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Long-Lived Asset Impairment 

The School evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived assets whenever events 
or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.  If a long-lived asset is 
tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result from 
the use and eventual disposition of the asset are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset 
cost is adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the 
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.  No asset impairment was recognized 
during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Net Assets 

Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or 
grantor restrictions. 

Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use in general operations and not subject to 
donor or grantor restrictions. 

Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor or grantor restrictions.  Some restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified 
by the donor. 

State and Local Per-Pupil Operating Revenues 

Revenues from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and based 
on the number of students enrolled are recorded when services are performed in accordance with 
the charter agreement.  These grants are recorded as revenue by the School when services are 
rendered. 

Contributions 

Contributions are provided to the School either with or without restrictions placed on the gift by the 
donor.  Revenues and net assets are separately reported to reflect the nature of those gifts – with or 
without donor restrictions. The value recorded for each contribution is recognized as follows: 

Nature of the Gift Value Recognized 

Conditional gifts, with or without restriction 

Gifts that depend on the School overcoming a Not recognized until the gift becomes 
donor-imposed barrier to be entitled to the funds unconditional, i.e., the donor-imposed 

barrier is met 

Unconditional gifts, with or without restriction 

Received at date of gift – cash and other assets Fair value 

Received at date of gift – property, equipment Estimated fair value 
and long-lived assets 

10 



 
 

 
 

 

  
  

 

  

 
 

   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

  

  

Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Nature of the Gift Value Recognized 

Expected to be collected within one year Net realizable value 

Collected in future years Initially reported at fair value 
determined using the discounted present 
value of estimated future cash flows 
technique 

In addition to the amount initially recognized, revenue for unconditional gifts to be collected in 
future years is also recognized each year as the present-value discount is amortized using the level-
yield method. 

When a donor-stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets 
with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  Absent explicit donor stipulations 
for the period of time that long-lived assets must be held, expirations of restrictions for gifts of 
land, buildings, equipment and other long-lived assets are reported when those assets are placed in 
service. 

Gifts and investment income that are originally restricted by the donor and for which the restriction 
is met in the same time period are recorded as revenue with donor restrictions and then released 
from restriction. 

Conditional contributions having donor stipulations which are satisfied in the period the gift is 
received are recorded as revenue and net assets without donor restrictions. 

Contributed Services 

Contributions of services are recognized as revenue at their estimated fair value only when the 
services received create or enhance nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills possessed by 
the individuals providing the service and the service would typically need to be purchased if not 
donated.  

Income Taxes 

The School is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
a similar provision of state law.  However, the School is subject to federal income tax on any 
unrelated business taxable income.  The School files tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 

The costs of supporting the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the statements of activities.  The statements of functional expenses present the 
natural classification detail of expenses by function.  Certain costs have been allocated among the 
program and management and general categories based on estimates of time and effort, occupancy, 
number of students, and other methods. 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 2: Property and Equipment 

2021 2020 

Leasehold improvements 
Computer equipment and software 
Furniture and equipment 

$        950,322 
731,657 
253,301 

$ 950,322 
688,590 
253,301 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
1,935,280 

(1,861,437) 
1,892,213 

(1,821,985) 

$ 73,843 $ 70,228 

Note 3: Net Assets 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions 

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted 
purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors. 

2021 2020 

Charter School - regular and special education $                - $ 207,571 

Note 4: Investments and Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  Fair value measurements 
must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.  The 
hierarchy comprises three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets 
or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the 
full term of the assets or liabilities 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and that are significant 
to the fair value of the assets or liabilities 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Recurring Measurements 

The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the 
accompanying statements of financial position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the 
level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at June 30, 2021 and 
2020: 

2021 
Fair Value Measurements Using 

Money market mutual funds -
fixed income 

Total 

$    

$    

Total 

1,638,697 

1,638,697 

Quoted Prices 
in Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

$    1,638,697 

$    1,638,697 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

$ 

$ 

-

-

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

$ 

$ 

-

-

2020 
Fair Value Measurements Using 

Total 

Quoted Prices 
in Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Money market mutual fun
fixed income 

ds -
$    1,638,697 $    1,638,697 $ - $ -

Total $    1,638,697 $    1,638,697 $ - $ -

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets measured 
at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying statement of financial 
position, as well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 
There have been no significant changes in the valuation techniques during the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020.  
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Investments 

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within 
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy.  If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are 
estimated by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset 
pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced 
market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities, 
prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows.  Such securities are classified in 
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.  In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not 
available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy.  100 percent of the School’s 
investments are classified as Level 1. 

Note 5: Significant Estimates and Concentrations 

GAAP requires disclosure of certain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain 
concentrations.  Those matters include the following: 

Grants and Contracts 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources.  Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion that 
such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial 
statements.  Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial 
statements for such potential claims. 

Accounts Receivable and Revenue Concentrations 

54 percent and 33 percent of the School’s accounts receivable are due from New York State as of 
June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  99 percent of the School’s operating revenues and public 
support were from New York State for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Note 6: Liquidity and Availability 

The following represents the School’s financial assets at June 30: 

2021 2020 

Financial assets at year-end 
Cash $     1,133,718 $ 821,882 
Investments 1,638,697 1,638,697 
Grants, contracts, and other receivables 161,331 213,819 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs 
for general expenditures within one year $     2,933,746 $     2,674,398 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

The School has a policy to maintain available cash and short-term investments to meet 90 days of 
normal operating expenses, which are, on average, approximately $1,400,000.  The School 
manages its cash and liquid assets to ensure the availability of funds to meet its current expenses 
and liquidate its liabilities. In addition to these available financial assets, a significant portion of 
the School’s annual expenditures will be funded by current year operating revenues, including 
program fees and grants. 

Note 7: Retirement Plan 

The School sponsors a 403(b) thrift plan covering all employees.  All employees are immediately 
eligible to begin making voluntary reduction contributions.  The School has both an employer-
based contribution and an employer matching contribution in the plan. 

For the base employer contribution, employees must be at least age 21 and have two years of 
service to be eligible to start receiving the 3 percent employer base contribution.  Participants will 
receive this base contribution regardless of whether they are contributing to the 403(b) plan or not. 
The employer base contribution is 100 percent immediately vested. 

For the employer match, the participant must be at least age 21 and have two years of service with 
the School to be eligible to start receiving the employer match.  After two years with the School, if 
a participant is voluntarily contributing 1 percent into the 403(b), the School will begin to put in an 
employer matching contribution equivalent to 3 percent.  With employer match, the vesting is also 
100 percent immediate. 

Total expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $88,698 and $65,664, respectively. 

Note 8: Related-Party Transactions 

Administrative Services 

The Door is the sole member of the School and two members of the board of trustees of The Door 
are also members of the board of the School.  The Door assisted with the establishment of the 
School in obtaining its charter, and acted as fiscal conduit for the School when it was incorporated. 

Pursuant to an approved services agreement, the School paid The Door $417, 981 and $405,808 
during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, for administrative support and fund-
raising services, human resources services, fiscal management and information technology.  There 
was also $244,566 paid to The Door for shared services in 2021.  Such amounts are included as 
professional and administrative fees in the statements of functional expenses.  As of June 30, 2021 
and 2020, the School has a receivable from The Door of $654,418 and $108,773, respectively. 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Lease Commitment 

The School has a five-year operating lease agreement, commencing on July 1, 2011, with The Door 
for classrooms and office space at 121 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY, which expired on 
June 30, 2016.  Pursuant to subsequent annual amendments to this lease agreement, the School paid 
The Door rent that amounted to $520,512 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  Such 
amounts are included as occupancy cost in the statements of functional expenses. 

As part of the lease amendment entered into in June 2021, the School extended the lease agreement 
with The Door for a one-year term, which is set to expire on June 30, 2022. 

The future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2021 are: 

2022 $ 800,748 

Special Event 

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the School, together with The Door, held a joint special 
fundraising event from which the School’s gross share of revenue amounted to $348,438 and its net 
proceeds (after expenses of $24,932) were $325,000.  During the year ended June 30, 2020, the 
School, together with The Door, held a joint special fundraising event from which the School’s 
gross share of revenue amounted to $376,218 and its net proceeds (after expenses of $51,218) was 
$325,000. 

Contributed Services 

In addition to receiving cash contributions, the School receives in-kind contributions of legal 
services from a member of the Board.  It is the policy of the School to record the estimated fair 
value of certain contributed services as an expense in its financial statements, and similarly 
increase contribution revenue by the same amount.  For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, 
$64,092 and $80,115, respectively, was received in contributed services. 

Note 9: Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 1, 2021, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

Note 10: Future Accounting Change 

Accounting for Leases 

The Financial Accounting Standards Board amended its standard related to the accounting for 
leases.  Under the new standard, lessees will now be required to recognize substantially all leases 
on the statements of financial position as both a right-of-use asset and a liability. The standard has 
two types of leases for income statement recognition purposes: operating leases and finance leases. 
Operating leases will result in the recognition of a single lease expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term similar to the treatment for operating leases under existing standards.  Finance leases 
will result in an accelerated expense similar to the accounting for capital leases under existing 
standards.  The determination of lease classification as operating or finance will be done in a 
manner similar to existing standards.  The new standard also contains amended guidance regarding 
the identification of embedded leases in service contracts and the identification of lease and 
nonlease components in an arrangement. The new standard is effective for annual periods 
beginning after December 15, 2021.  The School is evaluating the impact the standard will have on 
the financial statements; however, the standard is expected to have an impact on the financial 
statements due to the recognition of additional assets and liabilities for operating leases. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
New York, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Broome Street 
Academy Charter High School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 1, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Broome Street Academy 
Charter High School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Broome 
Street Academy Charter High School’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Broome Street Academy Charter High School’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies, and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have 
not been identified.  However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and a 
significant deficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis.  We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
responses as item 2021-001 to be a material weakness. 



 

 

 
 

  

 

   

  

 
 

 

  

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
responses as item 2021-002 to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Broome Street Academy Charter High School’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School’s Response to Findings 

Broome Street Academy Charter High School’s response to the findings identified in our audit are 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses.  Broome Street Academy Charter 
High School’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
November 1, 2021 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Reference 
Number Summary of Findings 

2021-001 Financial Records and Year-End Accounting Procedures 

Criteria: Broome Street Academy Charter High School must prepare financial statements that 
reflect accurate information about its financial position, results of operations and 
changes in net assets for the fiscal year.  In addition, Broome Street Academy 
Charter High School should adhere to its internal controls to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial information and records, effectiveness 
and efficiency of operations, proper execution of management’s objectives, and 
compliance with laws and regulations. 

Condition: During our audit, we noted that detailed schedules supporting general ledger 
accounts were not prepared prior to the start of the audit, and when provided did not 
always agree with the general ledger balances.  There were also certain balances and 
transactions that were classified incorrectly under GAAP. 

Cause: Management did not have adequate resources and personnel to review and perform 
the year-end close of the accounting records in a timely manner. 

Effect: During the audit, we noted a number of instances of incorrect analyses and 
inadequate review of work performed by others. 

Recommendation: A closing process should be implemented that requires all of the statement of 
financial position accounts to be reconciled to supporting statements and subsidiary 
ledgers.  This will prevent incorrect balances or entries from being recorded.  In 
addition, we strongly recommend that the Chief Financial Officer perform a 
thorough and detailed review of the financial statements as part of the financial 
statement close. 

Views of Management acknowledges the seriousness of this finding for the period audited and 
Responsible has implemented remedies by putting in place the needed processes and reviews. 

Officials and The School is now current in updating and reporting all financial information. 
Planned 

Corrective 
Actions: 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Reference 
Number Summary of Findings (Continued) 

2021-002 Segregation of Duties 

Criteria: The accounting functions should be properly segregated to ensure proper internal 
controls over financial reporting. 

Condition: Due to the limited number of employees in the accounting department, many critical 
duties are combined and given to the available employees within the cash receipts 
and cash disbursements functions. 

Cause: The current size of the accounting department creates difficulties in properly 
segregating certain accounting functions. 

Effect: The School is exposed to loss due to potential fraud. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the School establish procedures so that record keeping, 
authorization, and reconciliation functions are segregated. 

Views of Management acknowledges the seriousness of this finding.  Steps have already been 
Responsible taken to remedy this situation, and the School is hiring new staff to strengthen 

Officials and internal controls. 
Planned 

Corrective 
Actions: 
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Broome Street Academy Charter High School 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Reference 
Number Summary of Findings Status 

2020-001 Financial Records and Year-End Accounting Procedures 

The initial trial balance provided had not reflected several closing 
adjustments.  The trial balance required significant revisions to 
ensure account balances were reconciled to supporting schedules. 

Unresolved – See 
Finding 2021-001 
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BROOME STREET ACADEMY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2021 

ASSETS 2020-21 2019-20 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  2,772,415  $  2,460,579 
Grants and contracts receivable 161,331 213,819 
Accounts receivables 654,418 108,773 
Prepaid expenses                                  62,593                                      45,015 
Contributions and other receivables                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                            3,650,757                                2,828,186 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net                                  73,843                                      70,228 

OTHER ASSETS                                  75,492                                      75,476 

TOTAL ASSETS 3,800,092 2,973,890 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  839,129  $  772,546 
Accrued payroll and benefits                                             -                                                 - 
Deferred Revenue                               201,351                                                 -
Current maturities of long-term debt                                             -                                                 - 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable                                             -                                                 - 
Other                                  63,385                                      55,161 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                            1,103,865                                   827,707 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent                                             -                                                 - 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                            1,103,865                                   827,707 

NET ASSETS 
                                                - 

With Donor Ristrictions                                2,146,183 
TOTAL NET ASSETS                            2,696,227                                2,146,183 

Without Donor Restrictions                            2,696,227 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS                            3,800,092                                2,973,890 

CK - Should be zero - -



 

          

                 
        
     
                           
           

                                     
       

                                       
                                       

  
                       
        

                          
                 
  

            

 

BROOME STREET ACADEMY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2021 

 Without Donor 
Restrictions 

2020-21 
 With Donor 
Restrictions  Total 

2019-20

 Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District

 Resident Student Enrollment 
 Students with disabilities

Grants and Contracts
 State and local 
 Federal - Title and IDEA 
 Federal - Other 
 Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education 
 Special Education 
 Other Programs

Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions

 Foundations
 Individuals 
 Corporations 

Fundraising
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Net assets released from restriction

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR 

 $        

 $  

 $  

 $  

     5,066,764  $  
                    832,374 

                      79,684 
                      62,540 
                                 - 
                      64,092 
                    395,057 
                                 - 

                6,500,511 

3,840,574  $                      
1,346,382 

                                 - 
                5,186,956 
                1,455,737 
                    230,795 
                6,873,488 

                  (372,977)

469,063  $  
                    127,923 
                                 - 
                    325,000 
                        1,035 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                    923,021 

                    550,044 

                2,146,183 
                                 - 

2,696,227  $  

- 
                                 -

                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

        - 
                                 - 
                                 - 

            - 
            - 

                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

-
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 -
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

                                 - 
                                 - 

- 

 $  

 $  

 $  

$  

5,066,764 
                    832,374 

                      79,684 
                      62,540 
                                 - 
                      64,092 
                    395,057 
                                 - 

                6,500,511 

3,840,574 
                1,346,382 
                                 - 
                5,186,956 
                1,455,737 
                    230,795 
                6,873,488 

                  (372,977)

469,063 
                    127,923 
                                 - 
                    325,000 
                        1,035 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                    923,021 

                    550,044 

                2,146,183 
                                 - 

2,696,227 

 $            

 $                      

 $                        

 $  

               4,832,807 
                         943,918 

                207,571 
                            69,046 

                                          - 
         86,554 

                      185,743 
                                               - 

                              6,325,639 

     3,922,201 
         1,353,080 

                                         - 
            5,275,281 
            1,371,899 

                                 276,222 
                              6,923,402 

                                (597,763) 

      555,787 
          200,285 

                                       - 
        325,000 

                   26,397 
                                  17,873 

                                               - 
                              1,125,342 

                                 527,579 

                                   - 
                                               - 

527,579 



                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                
                                                                              
                                                                           
                                                   

                                       
                                                    

                                         

                                     

BROOME STREET ACADEMY CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 2019-20 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets  $  550,044  $  527,579 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 39,452 28,052 
Grants Receivable 33,603 (44,966) 
Due from NYS 201,351 (94,656) 
Grant revenues -                                                     - 
Prepaid Expenses                                        (17,578)                                         10,144 
Accounts Payable                                         66,583                                         72,528 
Accrued Expenses                                                     -                                                     - 
Accrued Liabilities                                            8,224                                         14,454 
Contributions and fund-raising activities                                        (16,664)              - 
Miscellaneous sources                                                     - - 
Deferred Revenue                                                     -                                                     - 
Interest payments                                                     -                                                     - 
Due to affiliate                                     (545,645)                                     (127,748) 
Other (Realized gains/bad debt expense)                                         18,192            - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $  337,562  $  385,387 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment                                        (43,067)                                        (84,061) 
Other                                         17,357                                        (16,735)

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  $  (25,710)  $  (100,796) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt                                                     -                - 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $                                                -  $                                                - 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  $  311,852  $  284,591 
Cash at beginning of year                                       897,358                                       612,767 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $  1,209,210  $  897,358 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Melissa Silberman, Head of School; Jen Pasek, Consultant; Nora Clancy, Consultant; Laisa Khan, Data 
Manager; Matthew Molloy, Senior Dean of Academics prepared this 2020-21 Accountability 
Progress Report on behalf of the school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name 
Board Position 

Office  Committees 

M. David Zurndorfer Chair Executive 

Monica de la Torre Vice Chair Executive, Grievance, 
Development 

Noah Leff Treasurer Executive, Finance, Audit 

Catherine S Aquila Secretary Executive, Development 

Katie Jaxheimer Agarwal Trustee/Member Program, Finance, 
Grievance 

Gail Schargel Trustee/Member Program, Investment, 
Grievance 

Elaine Schott Trustee/Member Program, Development 

Herbert Elish Trustee/Member Finance, Executive 

Vanda Belusic-Vollor Trustee/Member Program 

Stephanie Durden Barfield Trustee/Member Program, Finance, Audit 

Jeffrey Katzin Trustee/Member Program, Investment, 
Development, Audit 

Lauren Blum Trustee/Member Investment 

John Quinn Trustee/Member 

Fernando Snowden-Lorence Trustee/Member 

Sarah Weeks Trustee/Member 

Alexandra C. Wood Trustee/Member 
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Melissa H. Silberman has served as the Head of School since June 1st, 2018. 
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SCHOOL OVERVIEW 
Mission and Population 
Broome Street Academy Charter School (Broome Street or BSA) is a college preparatory high school 
that serves some of New York City’s most vulnerable students. The school opened its doors in the fall 
of 2011. Our missionstates: Broome Street Academy Charter High School will empower our students 
to reach their highest aspirations for post-secondary success. Our equitable, holistic, and student-
centered approach will provide students with access to a rigorous, standards-based curriculum that 
will equip our graduates with the skills they need to make a positive impact on their communities and 
the broader world. 

BSA is dedicated and designed to serve the City’s most vulnerable young people and, as such, we 
offer a lottery set-aside of 50% for students who indicate that they are: 

 Currently living in, or have lived in a shelter, a hotel/motel, a car, with another family (due 
to economic hardship), or in another temporary living arrangement; or 

 Unaccompanied youth (not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian); or 
 Currently in, or have ever been in, foster care, or otherwise involved in the child welfare 

system. 
 If, after offering this preference to students within and outside of CSD 2, seats remain open, 

our 5th and 6th preferences are for students who reside in New York City public housing 
and/or are eligible to receive Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) or 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) benefits. 

Partnership with The Door 

BSA grew from the vision of the staff and Board of Trustees of The Door—a Center for Alternatives, 
Inc. (The Door), which is BSA’s partner institution and with which BSA shares a campus. The Door has 
been working to support New York City’s most vulnerable youth for over 45 years. Each year, The 
Door serves nearly 11,000 young people from all over New York City, with a wide range of services, 
including primary and reproductive health care and education, mental health counseling and crisis 
assistance, legal assistance, academic and college-preparatory services, career development, job 
training and placement, supportive housing, sports and recreational activities, arts programming, and 
daily nutritious meals. Through our unique partnership with The Door, all BSA students have had 
access to the services offered by The Door, all at no cost and in the same building as their school. 

BSA’s Key Design Elements: 

1. A school culture grounded in the principles of youth development; 
2. The recruitment, nurturing and retention of quality staff; 
3. A focus on assessment as a critical analytical tool; and, 
4. Multiple pathways to post-secondary success for students not ready for college. 

2020-21 School Year Modalities 

Between September 2020 and April 2021, BSA offered an entirely remote program, offered primarily 
through synchronous instruction on Zoom. Starting in April 2021, we shifted to a hybrid model until 
the end of the 2020-21 school year. Our summer school in 2021 was offered in-person with social 
distancing guidelines in place. Our experience with remote and hybrid learning helped us realize the 
importance of a 1:1 program; starting in 2020-21, we provided every student with a Chromebook. 
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2020-21 School Year Mental and Emotional Supports 

Mental health support was a critical need as students returned to school in September 2020 with 
high levels of trauma. To meet this need, our social work department contacted every incoming first-
year student over the course of the summer to assess their incoming mental health needs and identify 
any history of trauma, as well as learn about their experience in middle school during the 2020 
closure. When school resumed in the fall, BSA’s social work team similarly reached out to our 
returning students to assess their needs. All BSA students who need individual or group counseling 
beyond what is mandated in their IEP were offered mental health services from The Door. 

We also formed a caregiver communication committee in the 2020-21 school year. This committee 
focused on creative, non-traditional caregiver engagement strategies. These strategies, substantially 
informed by our experience with virtual learning during the COVID-19 closure, taught us that 
caregivers can be engaged virtually. For example, during our enrollment period in 2020, we offered 
weekly caregiver drop-in Zooms to support the enrollment process, and in Fall 2020, we launched a 
monthly “Intro to The Door” virtual session that covers the services and supports, including access to 
benefits and legal services, available from The Door. 

ENROLLMENT SUMMARY 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 

School 
Year 9 10 11 12 Total 

2016-17 90 81 80 67 318 

2017-18 101 74 81 78 334 

2018-19 96 71 48 82 297 

2019-20 59 85 91 77 312 

2020-21 115 63 77 76 331 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The state’s Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of 
high school after entering the 9th grade.  For example, the 2017 state Accountability Cohort consists 
of students who entered the 9th grade anywhere sometime during the 2017-18 school year, were 
enrolled in the school on the state’s annual enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 
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2020-21 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 
acceptable reason.  (See New York State Education Department’s SIRS Manual for more details 
about cohort eligibility and acceptable exit reasons: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht) 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
fourth year of high school and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30th of that year. 

Fourth-Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designatio 

n 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day 

in October of the 
Cohort’s Fourth Year 

Number  
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 

Number in 
Accountability 

Cohort as of 
June 30th 

2018-19 2015-16 2015 75 2 73 

2019-20 2016-17 2016 80 10 70 

2020-21 2017-18 2017 86 3 83 

TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade.   Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the school’s Graduation Cohort.  The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following:  if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting 
program with documentation, transfer to homeschooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fourth 
Year  

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designatio 

n 

Number of Students 
Graduated or 

Enrolled on June 
30th of  the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year 
(a)

 Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason 
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2018-19 2015-16 2015 64 17 81 

2019-20 2016-17 2016 70 - 70 

2020-21 2017-18 2017 78 3 81 

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht
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Fifth 
Year  

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students 

Graduated or 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the Cohort’s 
Fifth Year 

(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason  
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2018-19 2014-15 2014 79 19 98 

2019-20 2015-16 2015 67 7 74 

2020-21 2016-17 2016 65 3 68 

PROMOTION POLICY 

The state has provided additional guidance regarding earning course credit and unit of study 
requirements here. 

BSA Grading and Awarding Course Credit 

Our grading and credit accumulation policy is aligned with requirements set forth by New York State 
to attain a high school diploma. Course credits are awarded on a semester basis. Students are 
awarded half credits (0.5 credits) for each class they pass each semester. New York State requires 
that students accrue 108 hours of instruction in order to be awarded credit. Attendance is critical to 
student success. Students who have 12 or more absences to a class, or 6 absences for an 80-minute 
class that meets every other day, are at risk of failing and will earn a grade of “54” in the class due 
to attendance. A passing grade at Broome Street Academy is 65, consistent with New York 
requirements. 

Grades are calculated as follows: 

Quarter 
1 Quarter 2 Semester1 Quarter 

3 Quarter 4 Semester 2

  Classwork & Participation 15% 15% 15% 15% Semester grade is 
the average of 
grades earned 
for Quarters 3 
and 4 

Homework 15% 15% 
Semester grade 
is the average of 15% 15% 

Common Assessments 30% 30% grades earned 
for Quarters 1 

30% 30% 

Formative and Summative 
Assessments 40% 40% and 2 40% 40% 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 
GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

BSA will prepare students for Post-Secondary Success. 
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Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will 
earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and 
examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation.  The measure 
requires that, based on the school’s promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second 
year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not achieve this graduation measure as many students struggled to adapt to the sudden 
changes in life and learning during COVID.  Although many were exempt from taking the NYS 
Regents exams, many had difficulty completing all the requirements to earn course credits for a 
variety of reasons. 

Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts 
Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2020-21 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number in 
Cohort during 

2020-21 

Percent 
Earning 5 

Credits 

2019 53 49% 

2020 87 43% 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for 
graduation.   

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage.  The measure requires that 75 
percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their 
second year in the cohort. 

As a result of the Board of Regents’ guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple 
administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 2020-21, for the most recent second year 
cohort schools should report the percentage of students who either passed or were exempted 
from at least three exams. In August of 2021, the 2019 cohort will have completed its second 
year. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Broome Street achieved this accountability metric with 90 percent of students in their second year 
of high school earning credit for at least three NYS Regents exams although this includes 
exemptions. 

Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

School Year Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Passing at 
Least Three 

Regents (including 
exemptions)  

2017 2018-19 62 37% 

2018 2019-20 76 87% 

2019 2020-21 48 90% 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 
percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts:  those who entered the 9th 

grade as members of the 2017 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as 
members of the 2016 cohort and graduated five years later.  These data reflect August graduation 
rates.  At a minimum, these students have passed or been exempted from five Regents exams 
required for high school graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or 
met the requirements for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.1 

The school’s graduation requirements appear in this document above the graduation goal. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not achieve this graduation measure. 65 percent of students in the 2017 Total Cohort 
graduated after four years in high school dropping by 14 points from the previous year.  88 percent 
of students in the 2016 Total Cohort graduated after five years in the cohort, up from 80 percent in 
2020. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years 

Cohort 
Designation 

School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2015 2018-19 81 63% 

1 The state’s guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/. 

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways
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2016 2019-20 70 79% 

2017 2020-21 83 65% 

Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years 

Cohort 
Designation 

School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2014 2018-19 98 81% 

2015 2019-20 74 80% 

2016 2020-21 63 88% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The pandemic’s changes to the physical setting that our students were able to learn in affected 
them and their families in different ways.  It was very difficult for some to adjust to learning outside 
of school and it’s also been challenging to transition back to being in the building full time. 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the 
completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter 
school’s Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district 
of comparison. Given that district results for the current year are generally not available at this 
time, for purposes of this report schools should include the district’s 2019-20 results as a temporary 
placeholder for the district’s 2020-21 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not match the graduation rate of our district of location Manhattan District #2, but we only 
enroll less than 3 percent of our students from that district.  Our students come to us from a great 
many districts, with Bronx #9 being home to our greatest percentage at 15%. The four year 
graduation rate for that district was 74% in 2019-20.  The other districts that make up the highest 
percentages of our enrollment at greater than 5 percent each had graduation rates ranging from 
66% - 80%. 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who 
Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District 

Charter School School  District 
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Cohort 
Designation 

School Year Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating  

2015 2018-19 81 63% 6974 80% 

2016 2019-20 70 79% 7374 81% 

2017 2020-21 83 65% TBD 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure  

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation 
pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and 
pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 

The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to 
graduation for all students.  Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams 
with an approved alternative assessment.  For more information about requirements and approved 
assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-
pathways/.  The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and 
success rate for students in the templates below. 

As a result of the Board of Regents’ guidance regarding the cancellation of multiple 
administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 2020-21, students planning to take a 
pathway examination during those cancelled dates would be exempted from the requirement. 
For purposes of this measure, only report results for students with valid scores for any pathway 
exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Not Applicable 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 

Although BSA did not meet any of the applicable graduation metrics in 2020-21, we made great 
efforts to keep in touch with our students and ensure those who did not graduate in four or five 
years know that they still can.  We have resources at The Door to help them stay on track and some 
enroll in their Alternative High School Equivalency program while also attending BSA, so they stay 
on track until completion. 

Type Measure Outcome 

http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple
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Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school 
Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed 
for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) each 
year.   

Not Met 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Graduation 
Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different New York 
State Regents exams required for graduation by the completion of 
their second year in the cohort.   

Not Met 

Absolute Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate.   Not Met 

Absolute Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. Not Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth 
year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

Not Met 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort 
pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents 
equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment 
required for graduation by the end of their fourth year. 

N/A 

ACTION PLAN 

In addition to our plans for the academic areas, we are in the process of outlining a plan to address 
learning loss to begin in January 2022.  With the help of grant funds, we plan to have trained tutors 
push into the classrooms to work directly with our students.  Many of our students do not tend to 
take advantage of supports that occur outside the daily schedule’s timeframe, so we needed to be 
creative in providing remediation during the school day. 

GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 
GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

Upon graduation, students will be prepared to navigate a clearly articulated pathway of 

next steps in their career and college planning, including social and study skills, motivation, 

work readiness competencies, resiliency, the ability to make connections to what they learned 

in school and how it connects to the world of work and their long-term career goals. 
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BSA works closely with all seniors to provide individualized support for post-secondary programs. 
BSA also has the support of a post-secondary readiness coach, provided through The Door’s College 
Access team (including the Director of Academic Services, and College Advisor). This team, in part, 
works directly with our student population to improve college and career readiness. Further, the 
board secured a small foundation grant to pay for a part-time employee who conducts periodic 
outreach to recent BSA graduates who are furthering their education. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at 
least one or some combination of the following indicators: 

 Passing an Advanced Placement (“AP”) exam with a score of 3 or higher; 

 Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate (“IB”) exam; 

 Passing a College Level Examination Program (“CLEP”) exam; 

 Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school 
partnership with a college or university; 

 Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; or, 

 Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation; or, 

 Achieving a minimum of two industry technical assessment to acknowledged by 
employers and industry leads (i.e., Google, Microsoft, Cisco, SkillsUSA); or, 

 NYCDOE School Quality Guide’s College Readiness Index 

METHOD 

Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 
percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework.  The school 
should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its 
students and eliminate those that it will not.  For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB 
Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option.  The school reports on 
the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and 
the corresponding percentage.  Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of 
students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the 
relevant indicators, and the overall percentage achieving any indicator. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA fell just short of this measure, having 72% of graduating students demonstrate an indicator for 
post secondary preparation. Because we serve a population of students in which many are 
considered at high risk of not completing high school or attending college, we offer programming to 
also prepare them for entering the workforce.  Many participate in the Summer Youth Employment 
Program (SYEP) to gain experience and responsibility of what being an employee looks like. In the 
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past we also tracked scores on standardized tests (SAT), but our graduating students did not sit for 
the assessment because of COVID, and most colleges are not requiring them for admission. 

Percentage of the 2017 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator 

Indicator 
Number of 

Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

Number who Achieved 
Indicator 

Percentage of Graduates 
who Achieved Indicator 

Advanced Placement 
Govt & Politics 

10 3 30% 

Advanced Regents 
Diploma 

54 8 15% 

Overall 
54 10 19% 

Percentage of the 2017 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating Post-Secondary Preparation by Indicator 

Indicator 

Number of 
Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

Number who 
Achieved 
Indicator 

Percentage of 
Graduates 

who Achieved 
Indicator 

Summer Youth Employment Program 38 32 86% 

Overall, from Both Tables 54 39 72% 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index (“CCCRI”) for the school’s Total Cohort will 
exceed the Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020-21. 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of comparison’s 
Total Cohort. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020-21. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year 
after graduation. 
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METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether 
students actually enroll and succeed in college.  Schools track and report the percentage of fourth-
year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four-year college program in the school 
year following graduation.  Schools should update and confirm data for Cohorts prior to 2020-21 
and provide preliminary matriculation data for 2017 Cohort.  It may be necessary for schools to 
provide updated data to the Institute when National Student Clearinghouse or other data sources 
become available later in the school year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not meet this metric in college matriculation for the year after graduation of the 2016 
cohort. 56 percent are confirmed to have matriculated in the spring 2021 and slightly more have 
matriculated this fall.  Our counseling office and services at The Door are available to assist all 
students with post-secondary planning. 

Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year 

Cohort 
Graduation Year 

Number of 
Graduates 

(a) 

Number Enrolled 
in 2 or 4-year 
Program in 

Following Year 
(b) 

Matriculation 
Rate 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

2015 2018-19 47 36 75% 

2016 2019-20 55 50 56% accepted 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

In partnership with The Door, students also have the opportunity to participate in a number of 
programs to prepare them for life after high school if they choose to enter directly into the 
workforce. 

SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 

The 2020 and 2021 school years were very different than typical years because of the pandemic and 
the many challenges and shifts in the education community.  Most college visits, fairs and 
interviews took place virtually.  Students toured campuses online and did not take the SAT exam.  
Without most NYS Regents exams in those years, students did not have as big a chance to earn a 
Regents Diploma with Advanced Designation since it depends on score ranges.  BSA also provides 
options for students to experience work programs during the summers. 68.5 percent of the 2021 
graduates participated in the Summer Employment Youth Program and coincidentally 68.5 percent 
were accepted  into 2-4 year colleges. 

Type Measure Outcome 
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Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate 
their preparation for college by one or more possible indicators 
of college readiness. 

Not Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the CCCRI for the school’s Total Cohort will 
exceed that year’s state MIP set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will 
exceed that of the district’s Total Cohort. N/A 

Absolute Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate 
into a college or university in the year after graduation. Not Met 

ACTION PLAN 

BSA will continue to offer more students opportunities to take multiple AP exams, which we believe 
will have a positive impact on our college preparation indicator going forward. In addition, the 
following areas of focus will support our progress toward meeting the post-secondary readiness 
measures going forward. 

Continued Initiatives for College and Career Readiness 

BSA continues its collaboration with The Door to support college and career readiness for our 
students. The Door employs a Director of College and Academic Services who oversees the College 
Advisor and our Post-Secondary Success Coach. This team works directly with our student 
population to improve college and career readiness. 

We are also emphasizing career-readiness through work-based learning, specifically the Summer 
Youth Employment Program (SYEP). 

We are addressing college readiness by increasing the rigor in our core academic classes.  We 
recognize that to reach a number of our accountability goals, and to prepare students for college 
and careers, our instructional rigor must increase. Schoolwide, we are supporting teachers to use 
data to drive instructional choices; we are also emphasizing the design of assessments that check 
for mastery of standards rather than basic comprehension. The following are still in place for 2021-
22 to challenge students: 

              
core ELA classes. To support students who have achieved a 65 or higher or who are on the cusp of 
achieving a performance level of 4, we emphasized writing in all subjects for seniors, with additional 
focus on writing in senior ELA classes. 

                 
have either passed the ELA Regents or who are accelerated juniors or seniors who need more 
academic challenges.  

                
in addition to Geometry, Algebra II, and Pre-Calculus.  

Teacher Observation and Evaluation 
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With our push to increase rigor schoolwide, we are working to support teachers as they adjust to 
our new expectations for instruction. We continue to use the Danielson Framework as the primary 
rubric for coaching and evaluating teachers. 

Teachers are informally observed at least 6 times per year, and formal observations happen twice 
per year.  Feedback is delivered via Whetstone, a software platform designed to support classroom 
observations that we adopted. BSA also uses the Culturally Responsive Instruction Observation 
Protocol (CRIOP) as a framework for teacher professional development. 

For school leaders sitting on the leadership cabinet,2 the Head of School follows a formal evaluation 
system using a goal-setting model to provide an annual formal evaluation of each. 

To increase students’ ownership of their academic trajectories, we are focused on encouraging 
students to develop self-direction skills. 

2 The leadership cabinet includes the Senior Dean of Academics, Dean of STEM, Dean of Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, Dean 
of Social Work, Senior Director of Operations, and Dean of Students (6 people). 
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GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 
Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate. The State 
Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core).  This measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort 
that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.  

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 
2020-21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement.  As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students achieving at least Level 4 among 
the students who sat for the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not meet this measure.  38% of those tested scored in the Level 4 range on the NYS ELA 
Regents exam. Because this Regents exam has not been administered in 2020 or 2021, many 
students are exempt from this and several other Regents graduation requirements. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort3 

Cohort 
Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in Cohort 

(a) 

Number 
exempted 
with No 

Valid 
Score (b) 

Number 
Scoring at 

Least Level 
4 

(c) 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2015 2018-19 73 0 16 24% 

2016 2019-20 70 15 11 23% 

2017 2020-21 83 33 16 38% 

3 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) on the Regents English exam of students completing their 
fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state’s Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) 
set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020-21. 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020-21. 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common 
Core expectations. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020-21. 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district 
of comparison. 

The calculation of this measure is not required for 2020-21. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will meet the college and 
career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not track NYS ELA results from the 2017 Cohort students when they were in the 8th grade. 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 
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Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet 
Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 

Although we continue to improve rigor in our English Language Arts courses, we also had teachers 
working to improve the quality of instruction in our hybrid model in 2020-21.  We achieved the 
accountability measure with having 86 percent of the 2017 accountability cohort score at 65+ on 
the ELA Regents but continue to work toward increasing the scores to Level 4 on the ELA Regents. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

No Met 

Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Met 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the 
district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Data 
Unavailable 
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Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Data 
Unavailable 

ACTION PLAN 

To address learning loss in the 2021-22 school year, we are introducing several school-wide 
initiatives to support high quality teaching and learning. These school-wide initiatives are as follows: 

Director of Curriculum: BSA hired a Director of Curriculum and Instruction to oversee our academic 
program going forward. 

Instructional Coach: We are working with an instructional consultant to ensure that our teachers 
are prepared with the skills necessary to reach all students. 

Interim Assessment Cycle: We are using a 6-week interim assessment cycle for all BSA scholars in 
order to monitor student performance trends and drive instructional choices. 

New Visions Public Schools (NVPS) Curriculum: We are adopting the curricular framework from 
NVPS, which is a standards-aligned, adaptable curriculum. We are confident that the rigor of this 
program will improve student mastery and outcomes. 

Academic Recovery: BSA is introducing an after-school credit recovery model for freshman and 
sophomores. This program will begin in the fall of 2021. 

PM School Program: We are offering a later start time to juniors and seniors so that these students 
can access morning services, such as workforce readiness, provided by The Door. 

Improving Literacy and Numeracy: We are investing in software that supports literacy and 
numeracy across our ELA and math programs. 

As a school, we recognize that students have always needed support in writing.  One of the 
elements of instruction that was lost during covid is the continuity that is needed to engage 
students fully in an iterative writing process.  While it is a school-wide concern, the solution and 
action steps begin in the ELA classroom.  We will be using the writing methodologies in NVPS 
curriculum to create a coherent vertically sound approach to writing instruction.  This work starts in 
what we are calling Week Zero for instruction (the week we return to school) with intense focus and 
practice on the writing routines and the overall approach that the curriculum prescribes and carries 
on in an ongoing way throughout all of the units in the school year.  We are supporting this work in 
three notable ways: 

It is an ongoing part of the observation and feedback cycle.  We have identified component 3c from 
the Danielson Rubric as the lever to use to set a bar for quality work on writing in ELA and across 
the whole school  To that end, the newly hired director of curriculum and the entire academics 
team will be using 3c as a way to coach people towards creating substantive writing tasks for 
students using the methodologies in the NVPS curriculum. 
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We have changed our supervisory model to be less driven by department goals and more driven by 
school-wide goals.  We believe that this will allow us to give clearer feedback and foster greater 
development in areas like writing and written task development.  Unlike last year, the Dean of 
Academics and the Director of Curriculum and Instruction will be focused equally on writing across 
all classrooms and specifically in ELA classrooms.  

Using the NVPS curriculum with fidelity supports our goal in creating a vertically sound way to teach 
writing and to foster growth in the student’s ability to engage in an iterative process that supports 
them in developing and communicating their ideas in writing. 

Finally, we will see an upward trend in student performance when looked at longitudinally through 
the lens of our interim assessment system.   We are adopting the rubrics used along with a common 
assessment system  This system will help us to understand student achievement  in writing as 
individuals and as a whole.  Our goal is to see student writing skill increase on the individual grade 
level writing skill rubrics as well as see scores increase on the holistic rubric.   

GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS 

HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 
Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics 
exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate.  
The State Education Department currently defines the college and career readiness standard as 
scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents 
Common Core mathematics exams.  This measure examines the percent of the Accountability 
Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the 
cohort. 

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 
2020-21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for any mathematics exam 
but were scheduled to sit for one during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement.  As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam requirement as well as the percentage of students achieving at least 
Level 4 among the students who sat for any exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not achieve this metric in math.  15 percent of the 55 students in the 2017 accountability 
cohort scored at the Level 4 range on any NYS Math Regents exam during their four years in the 
high school. 
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METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate. 
The State Education Department currently defines the cut off for passing and meeting the 
requirement for graduation as scoring at or above Performance Level 3 (partially meeting Common 
Core expectations) on the Regents mathematics exams.  This measure examines the percent of the 
Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance Level 3 by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort.  

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 
2020-21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for any mathematics exam 
but were scheduled to sit for one during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement.  As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam requirement as well as the percentage of students achieving at least 
Level 3 among the students who sat for any exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA achieved this metric, having 89 percent of the students who sat for a NYS Math Regents pass 
with a score in the Level 3 range. 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 3 on a Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation Fourth 

Year 

Number 
in Cohort 

(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Scoring at 
Least Level 3 

(c) 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 3 Among Students 

with Valid Score 
(c)/(a-b) 

2015 2018-19 73 0 4 5% 

2016 2019-20 

70 
69 

Tested or 
E 

19 4 8% 

2017 2020-21 83 26E & 1 Not 
Tested 49 89% 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Please note that the previous years indicate percent of total accountability cohort earned a Level 3, 
whereas the 2020-21 percentages are the percent of those tested as that is more telling of the 
success rate. 

Percent Achieving at Least Level 3 by Cohort and Year 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 
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Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career 
readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core 
expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA did not track 8th grade NYS ELA exam results for the students graduating this year. 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English 
requirement for graduation.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

This information is not available. 

SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 

The vast majority of students who took a NYS Math Regents, passed with a score of at least a 65.  86 
percent of the 2017 accountability cohort who took a math Regents earned at least a 65 on after 
four years in high school. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Not Met 

Absolute 
Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Met 
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Absolute 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students completing 
their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state Measure of 
Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system.  

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations. 

N/A 

Comparative 
Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in 
the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Info Unavailable 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently 
scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Info Unavailable 

ACTION PLAN 

We believe that the department that will most benefit from alignment to a common curriculum is 
the math department.  What we learned as a school community when we stretched Algebra over 
four semesters as opposed to two is that there is not a common understanding at the school about 
what students need.  The added time to spend on topics resulted in an uneven approach that was 
not driven by a sustained examination of data.  Instead, teachers attempted to close all of the gaps 
they encountered with students all of the time.  

Standardizing curriculum and the approach to math we are providing the structure for teachers to 
dig deeply into the gaps they encounter with students in a systematic and facilitated way that is led 
by our Director of Curriculum and Instruction.  

In all subjects, but especially in math, a standardized curriculum and regular assessments will not 
only support teachers in identifying gaps but will also give the school an opportunity to identify 
school wide deficiencies. Identifiable patterns for the whole school will allow for targeted 
adjustments on curriculum and instruction as well as developing professionals learning inquiries for 
the math teachers and academic leaders that were only asked in in some grades last year.  BSA is 
dedicating Election Day 2021 and time at our bi-monthly professional development sessions to 
learning about the school wide gaps and trends that we identify using the new curriculum. 
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The instructional coach that has been hired to support instruction at BSA this coming year comes to 
us with years of experience in supporting instruction in math and science. She will be deployed to 
give feedback and support instruction in all math classes weekly from the start of the year. To start 
the year, she is focusing on lesson planning and task development with the teachers.  Overall, her 
goal is to support a more cohesive approach to unit planning and lesson delivery that does not 
focus on a calendar of discrete skills or concepts but focuses on larger mathematical understandings 
and working backwards with students to obtain skills and understand discrete concepts. 

In addition, to the strategies listed above, refer to the school-wide initiatives described in the ELA 
action plan.  
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GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics.  The school administered the Living 
Environment, Earth Science and Chemistry Regents prior to the pandemic. It scores Regents on a 
scale from 0 to 100; students must score at least 65 to pass.  This measure requires students in each 
Accountability Cohort to pass any one of the Regents science exams by their fourth year in the 
cohort.  Students may have taken a particular Regents science exam multiple times or have taken 
multiple science exams.  Students have until the summer of their fourth year to pass a science 
exam.   

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 
2020-21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement.  As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who 
sat for the exam. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA achieved this science accountability measure, having greater than 75 percent of the 2017 
accountability cohort who took a NYS science Regents exam passing with a performance of at least 
a Level 3 or above. 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 
(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Passing 
with at Least a 65 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid Score 

(c)/(a-b) 

2015 2018-19 73 0 63 86% 

2016 2019-20 *66/70 
tested 

23 43 100% 

2017 2020-21 83 37 42 86% 
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METHOD 

New York State administers two high school social studies assessments: U.S. History and Global 
History.  In order to graduate, students must pass both of these Regents exams with a score of 65 or 
higher.  This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the two exams by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. Students may have taken the exams multiple times 
and have until the summer of their fourth year to pass it.  Once students pass it, performance on 
subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing.  

Due to the state’s cancellation of multiple administrations of the Regents exams in 2019-20 and 
2020-21, some students in the 2017 Cohort who had not previously sat for the exam but were 
scheduled to sit for this exam during a cancellation would be exempted from the graduation 
requirement.  As such, the school should report both the number of students who were 
exempted from the exam as well as the percentage of students passing among the students who 
sat for the exam. 

RESULTS 

Students typically take this Regents in their third year in high school.  Because all the Regents exams 
were cancelled in 2020 and 2021, none of our 2017 accountability cohort took the NYS U.S. History 
Regents. 

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65 
by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

Fourth 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

(a) 

Number 
Exempted with 
No Valid Score 

(b) 

Number Passing 
with at Least a 65 

(c) 

Percent Passing Among 
Students with Valid Score 

(c)/(a-b) 

2015 2018-19 73 0 53 73% 

2016 2019-20 70 
62 Tested or 
Rec'd Credit 

30 28 88% 

2017 2020-21 83 All -- All Exempt 

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a score of 65 by Cohort and Year 

Cohort 
Designation 

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

2017 60 N/A 82 
60E 

73% 83 NA 

2018 59 N/A 2 Tested 
1 E 

100% 74 NA 
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METHOD 

Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. 
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements.  Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

BSA met this accountability measure. Because there were not traditional Regents testing at the high 
school level in 2020-21, BSA’s 2020-21 accountability status is based on the 2019-20 & 2018-19 
results: Good Standing. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

BSA continues to be in Good Standing. 

Accountability Status by Year 

Year Status 

2018-19 Good Standing 

2019-20 Good Standing 

2020-21 Good Standing 
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FY 2022 Capi 
( 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Laptop Cart 
Laptops 
Smart Board (LED) or White Board Projector 
Installation 
Chromebook Cart 
Chromebooks 
Calculators 

Total Student Technology 

Price 
1,800 

750 
4,000 

750 
1,500 

400 
100 

6 Teacher Laptops 750 

Grand Total 

All amounts are Based on prices from Shop DOE and Amazon and Apple estimates 
found online 



                                         
                                     
                                     
                                     
                                         
                                   
                                   

              

                                    

              

tal Technology Purchase Plan 
In Priority Order) 

Quantity 
2 

60 
16 
16 
5 

180 
100 

Total Proposed 
3,600 

45,000 
64,000 
12,000 
7,500 

72,000 
10,000 

214,100 

35 26,250 

240,350 



  

 
 

Our Certificate of Occupancy is currently under review with the NYC Department of Buildings 
(DOB).  



     We are currently in the process of scheduling a fire inspection for August 2021. 
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